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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

8724 -

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, )
) Case N<C‘V'GRAHAM
Plaintiff, ) MAG\STRATE JUDGE
v ) JOHNSON
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1. The Comrission brings this action against cuido Volante
("Volante"), former president, CEO and director of Century
Technologies, Inc. ("Century") and Miriam Mercado ("Mercado")

former secretary, treasurer and director of Century (collectively
nDefendants") . Volante and Mercado caused Century to make material

misrepresentations in numerous filings with the Commission and in

various public communications between 1992 and 1995. 1In addition,
pDefendants Volante and Mercado caused Century to commit other

reporting, accounting and recording-keeping violations. The

Commission seeks injunctive relief, officer and director bars and

civil money penalties.

THE DEFENDANTS
2. Volante, age 64, is a resident of Delray Beach, Florida.

Volante was the former president, Chairman of the Board of
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Directors, and a director of Century from approximately December
1992 through November 1995. Volante is a recidivist securities law
violator, having been named in three prior Commission actions.
Volante was permanently enjoined by consent from further violations
of the federal securities laws 1in two actions in 1968 and the
Commission barred Volante from association with any broker or
dealer in 1970 with a right to reapply after one vyear. In
addition, the National Association of Securities Dealers ("NASD")
revoked Volante’s registration in a 1970 action.

3. Mercado, age 45, is a resident of Hollywood, Florida.
Mercado was the former secretary, treasurer and a director of
Century from approximately December 1992 through November 1995.

JURISDICTION

4. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to
Sections 21(d), 21(e), and 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §8§
78u(d), 78uf{e), 78aa. The Commission brings this action pursuant
to these authorities to restrain and enjoin the Defendants from
engaging in the acts and practices complained of herein, and for
other equitable relief.

5. At all relevant times, Century’s common stock was

registered with the Commission pursuant to Section 12(g) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act"), 15 U.S.C. §
781 (g), and, since 1993, has traded "over-the-counter" on the
National Asgociation of Securities Dealers, Inc. Automated

Quotation System ("NASDAQ") Bulletin Board System.
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6. Volante and Mercado, directly or indirectly, singly and
in concert, have made use of the means and instrumentalities of
interstate commerce, the means and instruments of transportation
and communication in interstate commerce, and the mails, in
connection with the acts and practices complained of herein.

FRAUDULENT CONDUCT

7. Volante and Mercado were responsible for Century’s
reporting obligations to the Commission and acted as agents and/or
officers of Century in preparing, reviewing and/or filing Century’s
Forms 10-K and 10-Q. Volante signed all the Forms 10-K and Mercado
signed all the Forms 10-K and 10-Q. Volante and Mercado were
responsible for maintaining Century’s books, records and accounts.
Volante and Mercado were also responsible for Century’s public
statements.

Fraudulent Overstatement of Assets

8. Century filed with the Commission annual reports on Form
10-K for the fiscal years ended December 31, 1992 and 1993, Forms
10-Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 1993, June 30, 1993,
March 31, 1994, June 30, 1994, September 30, 1994, March 31, 1995,
June 30, 1995, and September 30, 1995. These filings falsely
overstated the value of certain films and film license rights
(collectively, "films") purportedly owned by the Company. The
amount by which Century overstated its assets ranged from
$2,000,000 to &5,866,200 which overstatement, depending on the

particular report, represented approximately 42% to 90% of the
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Company’s total assets. This overstatement of Century’s assets
would have been material to investors.

9. Century purportedly acquired the title or the license
rights to over 900 films through certain agreements for a total
congideration of $5,386,200, which was composed primarily of two
notes payable, preferred stock, and broadcast time rights.

10. Century, through Volante and Mercado, failed to conduct
due diligence or research to ensure that it obtained valid title or
license rights to the films. Century entered into contracts to
license or purchase the films and carried them as an asset without
ever taking possession of them or confirming their existence.
Century merely received a list of film titles from the transferor
of the films.

11. The films were purportedly maintained in a Florida
warehouse. However, no rental or custody agreement ever existed
between Century and the transferor of the films to Century and no
rental or storage payments were ever paid by Century for storage of
any of the films that it purportedly licensed or owned. In
addition, Century never generated any revenues or other tangible
benefit from its purported license rights or ownership of the
films, and i1t made only nominal payments on the notes given in
consideration for the films.

12. Mercado caused Century to record the films as an asset on
Century’s financial statements. She caused Century to value the

films at amounts ranging from approximately $2 million to $5.3
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million on the Company’s balance sheet. She did so, with Volante’s
knowledge and approval.

13. Mercado and Volante resigned their positions with Century
in November 1995. Century’s new CEO and president conducted an
investigation of the ownership history of the majority of the films
that Century purportedly licensed or purchased during the relevant
time period. Century’s new CEO and president concluded that the
transferor of the films to Century did not possess the licensing
rights and/or the title to the films and did not have the authority
to license or sell them to Century.

14. On April 29, 1996, Century filed a Form 8-K with the
Commission reporting that it would rescind or cancel all agreements
relating to the transfer of the films because Century had not
received any documentation or substantiation concerning chain of
title for any of the films. Moreover, the financial statements
included in Century’s Form 10-KSB for fiscal year 1995 reflected
the write-off of the entire value of the films. In addition, in
August 1996, Century filed a lawsuit against the transferor of the
films to Century and his companies.

Failure to Make Certain Periodic Filings

15. Century failed to file the Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1994 and the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended September 30, 1993.

Fraudulent Representations Concerning a Loan Commitment

16. Century represented in two Forms 10-Q filed with the

Commission subsequent to August 9, 1994 (for the periods ended June
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30, 1994 and September 30, 1994), that the Company had a commitment
for a loan for $8.6 million from Usher Trust, a British Bank.
However, Usher Trust had formally rescinded this loan commitment as
of August 9, 1994. Even prior to August 9, 1994, the commitment
was only "tentative" because it was subject to a security valuation
and due diligence. This misrepresentation concerning major lending
from a bank would have been material to an investor.

17. Century also issued a misleading press release concerning
the termination of a tentative loan commitment from Usher Trust.
On August 10, 1994, a representative for Usher Trust sent a letter
to Volante requiring that Century issue a press release within
twenty-four hours announcing the termination of the funding
arrangement due to the results of the due diligence process. 1In
response, Century issued a newswire report on September 2, 1994,
which falsely stated that Century had declined an $8.6 million loan
commitment from a "private English trust," with the proceeds slated
to buy a casino, because the Company was instead considering an $18
million secondary offering. Century’s misrepresentations about the
reason for not obtaining the loan commitment would have been
material to an investor.

Failure to Disclose Volante’s Bankruptcies and Disciplinary Hisory

18. Century failed to disclose in its financial filings the
fact that Volante had filed personal bankruptcy petitions on three
separate occasions between 1992 and 1995. This information was
required by Item 401 of Regulation S-K, but was not disclosed

despite the fact that two of Volante’s bankruptcy petitions were
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filed during his tenure as Century’s CEO and president. The
failure to disclose Volante’s bankruptcy petitions was a material
omission because, among other things, investors would have attached
importance to his inability to manage his personal finances.

19. Century’s 1994 Corporate Profile contained misleading
statements about Guido Volante. It asserted that one of the
Company’'s strongest assets was the depth and experience of its
executive team. It sgpecifically stated that "Mr. Guido Volante,
Chairman of the Board and President, has been very active as a
Founder and Principal for several Broker-Dealer firms, and
possesses extensive experience 1in structuring, underwriting and
funding emerging companies seeking equity financing." This
promotional document, however, failed to disclose Volante'’s
disciplinary history in the securities industry, or his bankruptcy
filings, facts which would be material in this context to potential
investors.

False Press Releases and Other Public Communications

20. Century issued false press releases on September 2, 1994
and September 4, 1994 and disseminated promotional materials
including a 1994 "Corporate Profile" which contained false and
misleading information. On information and belief, Volante drafted
these statements and Mercado reviewed, edited and disseminated
them.

21. Century issued a ©press release and disseminated
promotional materials which fraudulently described an agreement to

acquire TransAir International ("TransAir"), a small air charter



Case 9:97-cv-08724-DLG Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/18/1997 Page 8 of 16

company. In a September 4, 1994 newswire report, Century announced
that it had " [plurchased 70% of a small public charter airline in
a stock transaction now worth $800,000." 1In addition, Century’s
1994 Corporate Profile stated that "CNTK [Century] boasts as its
new subsidiary, TransAir International, Inc., a public air charter
company that provides international and domestic air services to
casino destinations for tour and junket operators." The Corporate
Profile further stated that "TransAir, based in New York, has
contracts in force with tour operators which exceed $15 million
gross revenues to be completed in 1995 "

22. Century’s public statements pertaining to its purported
acquisition of TransAir were fraudulent in two respects. First,
the acquisition was never consummated. While the two companies did
enter into an agreement in August 1994, and the transaction was
scheduled to close on September 2, 1994, the closing never occurred
because TransAir was unable to provide the required financial
statements. The agreement was ultimately rescinded in December
1994. Second, TransAir was in financial difficulty during its
negotiations with Century and did not have contracts in force which
were worth $15 million. Volante and Mercado knew that Century’s
acquisition of TransAir was never consummated. In addition,
Volante and Mercado received documentation from TransAir indicating
that TransAir had contracts worth only approximately $3 million.

These misrepresentations about Century’s acquisition of TransAir

would have been material to an investor.



Case 9:97-cv-08724-DLG Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/18/1997 Page 9 of 16

COUNT T
(VOLANTE AND MERCADO)

FRAUD IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 10(b) OF
THE EXCHANGE ACT AND RULE 10b-5, THEREUNDER

23. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 22 are
realleged and incorporated by reference.

24. From in or about December 1992 and continuing through
November 1995, Defendants Volante and Mercado directly and
indirectly, by the use of the means or instruments of interstate
commerce or of the mails, in connection with the purchase or sale
of securities, as described herein, knowingly and willfully, or at
a minimum, severe recklessly: (i) employed manipulative or
deceptive devices, contrivances, schemes or artifices to defraud;
(ii) made untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state
material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading; and/or (iii) engaged in acts, practices or courses of
business which have operated as a fraud or deceit upon the
purchasers and prospective purchasers of such securities,
including, but not limited to, making the misrepresentations and
omissions of material fact described in paragraphs 7 through 22,
above.

25. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Volante and
Mercado directly or indirectly, have violated and, unless enjoined,
will continue to violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15

U.s.Cc. 8 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5, thereunder.
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COUNT II
(VOLANTE)

CONTROL PERSON LIABILITY FOR CAUSING CENTURY TO
FILE FALSE AND MISLEADING, AND FAILING TO FILE CERTAIN,
FORMS 10-K AND 10-Q IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 13 (a) OF THE
EXCHANGE ACT AND RULES 12b-20, 13a-1 AND 13a-13 THEREUNDER

26. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 25 are
realleged and incorporated by reference.

27. As described in paragraphs 7 through 18, above, Century
filed false and misleading Forms 10-K and 10-Q. Directly or
indirectly, Volante controlled Century and caused it to file false
and misleading Forms 10-K and 10-Q. Volante did not act in good
faith and, directly or indirectly, induced Century to file false
and misleading Forms 10-K and 10-Q.

28. As described in paragraphs 7 through 18, above, Century
failed to include such further material information in its Forms
10-K and 10-Q necessary to make the required statements, in light
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
Directly or indirectly, Volante controlled Century and caused it to
fail to include such further material information in its Forms 10-K
and 10-Q. Volante did not act in good faith and, directly or
indirectly, induced Century to file Forms 10-K and 10-Q that
omitted such further material information.

29. As described in paragraph 15, above, Century failed to
file Formg 10-K and 10-Q for the periods ended December 31, 1994
and September 30, 1993, respectively. Directly or indirectly,
Volante controlled Century and caused it to fail to file such Forms
10-K and 10-Q. Volante did not act in good faith and, directly or

10
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indirectly, induced Century to fail to file such Forms 10-K and 10-
Q.

30. By reason of the foregoing, pursuant to Section 20 (a) of
the Exchange Act, 15 U.S8.C. § 78t(a), as a control person of
Century, Defendant Volante has violated and, unless enjoined, will
continue to violate Section 13 (a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §
78m(a), and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §8§
240.12b-20, 240.13a-1 and 240.13a-13 thereunder.

COUNT IIT
(VOLANTE)
CONTROL PERSON LIABILITY FOR CAUSING CENTURY TO FAIL

TO MAKE AND KEEP REQUIRED BOOKS, RECORDS, AND ACCOUNTS
IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 13(b) (2) (A) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

31. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 30 are
realleged and incorporated by reference.

32. As described in paragraphs 7 through 18 above, Century
failed to make and keep books, records, and accounts which, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly vreflected Century’s
transactions and its dispositions of assets as required by Section
13 (b) (2) (A) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b) (2) (A).
Directly or indirectly, Volante controlled Century and caused it to
fail to make and keep such books, records and accounts. Volante
did not act in good faith and, directly or indirectly, induced
Century to fail to make and keep such books, records and accounts.

33. By reason of the foregoing, pursuant to Section 20 (a) of
the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78t(a), as a control person of

Century, Defendant Volante has violated and, unless enjoined, will

11
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continue to violate Section 13(b) (2) (A) of the Exchange Act, 15
U.S.C. § 78m(b) (2) (A).
COUNT IV
(VOLANTE AND MERCADO)
CIRCUMVENTING OR FAILING TO IMPLEMENT A SYSTEM
OF INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS AND FALSIFYING
REQUIRED BOOKS, RECORDS, AND ACCOUNTS AND MAKING FALSE

STATEMENTS TO AN AUDITOR IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 13 (b) (5)
OF THE EXCHANGE ACT AND RULES 13b2-1 and 13b2-2 THEREUNDER

34. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 33 are
realleged and incorporated by reference.

35. Asg described in paragraphs 7 through 18, above, Volante
and Mercado knowingly circumvented or knowingly failed to implement
a system of internal accounting controls or knowingly falsified
books, records or accounts described in Section 13 (b) (2) of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b) (2).

36. As described in paragraphs 7 through 18, above, Volante
and Mercado, directly or indirectly, falsified or caused to be
falsified, books, records or accounts subject to Section
13 (b) (2) (A) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b) (2) (7).

37. As described in paragraphs 7 through 18, above, Volante
and Mercado, directly or indirectly, made or caused to be made
materially false or misleading statements, or omitted to state, or
caused another person to omit to state, material facts necessary in
order to make statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading to an accountant in connection
with (1) audits or examinations of Century’s financial statements

required pursuant to Section 13(b) (2) of the Exchange Act, 15

12
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U.s.C. § 78m(b) (2), or (2) the preparation or filing of documents
or reports required to be filed with the Commission.

38. By reason of the foregoing, Volante and Mercado have
violated and, unless enjoined will continue to violate Section
13 (b) (5) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b) (5), and Rules

13b2-1 and 13b2-2 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-1 and 240.13b2-

2.
RELIEF REQUESTED
WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff Commission respectfully prays that
the Court:

I
Declare, determine and find that each of the Defendants named
herein committed the violations alleged herein.
IT
Issue a Permanent Injunction, restraining and enjoining
Defendants Volante and Mercado, their officers, agents, servants,
employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with him, and each of them, directly or indirectly,
from violating Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5, thereunder, and
Section 13 (b) (5) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b) (5) and
Rules 13b2-1 and 13b2-2, 17 C.F.R. 8§ 240.13b2-1, 240.13b2-2

thereunder.

13
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ITT
Issue a Permanent Injunction, restraining and enjoining
Defendant Volante, his officers, agents, servants, employees,
attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation with
him, and each of them, directly or indirectly, from violating
Section 13 (a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(a), and Rules
12b-20, 13a-1, and 13a-13, 17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-20, 240.13a-1,
240.13a-13, thereunder, and section 13(b) (2) of the Exchange Act,
15 U.S.C. § 78m(b) (2).
Iv
Issue an Order directing Defendants Volante and Mercado to pay
civil penalties pursuant to Section 21(d) (3) of the Exchange Act,
15 U.8.C. § 78ul(d) (3), for their wviolations of the federal
securities laws as complained of herein, which occurred on or after
October 15, 1990.
v
Pursuant to Section 21(d) (2) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §
78u(d) (2), issue an Order permanently barring Volante and Mercado
from acting as officers or directors of any issuer that has a class
of securities registered with the Commission pursuant to Section 12
of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 781, or that is required to file
reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §

780 (d) .

14
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VI

Grant such other and further relief as may be necessary and

appropriate.

Dated:

By:

September ZE; 1997

cffull subm;tt/d
j 0 ne

Charles V. Sena or
Regional Dlrect r
Florida Bar No. 308935

Mitchell E. Herr
Regional Trial Counsel
Florida Bar No. A-5500259

Cheryl Evans Dunfee
Senior Counsel
Pennsylvania Bar No. 56701

Attorneys for Plaintiff

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
1401 Brickell Avenue, Suite 200
Miami, Florida 33131

(305) 982-6336

15
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